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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Members of DNEG India Media Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DNEG India Media Services Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit, its total comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board's Report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

« Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

« If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
XV other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except that we have been represented by the
management that the Company is in process of complying with the requirement of maintaining
server(s) physically located in India for back-up of books of account on a daily basis as required
pursuant to amendment in Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 on August 5, 2022 - refer note
38(i) to the financial statements.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f) The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
are as stated in paragraph (b) above.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company
to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its

i
\' financial statements.
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any materiai foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts wh
Protection Fund by the Com

ich were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
pany.

iv. The Management has represented that:

(a) To the best of it's know
invested (either from bo
funds) by the Compan
entities (“Intermediari

ledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
rrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
y to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
es"

), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or

otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other

P€rsons or entities iden
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

tified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the

(b) To the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and

believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has not dec
final dividend for the year,

vi.

March 31, 2023.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Com
using accounting softwar

applicable to the Compan
of Companies (Audit and

lared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed

panies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account
€ which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is
y w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(q)
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Panaji, Goa, September 27, 2023

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117364wW/ W100739)

Auclacluc

Varsha A. Fadte

(Partner)

(Membership No. 103999)
UDIN: 23103999BGXIHN4722
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of DNEG India Media
Services Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal contro! stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contro!
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
\ disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to financial statements
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117364W/ W100739)

Varsha A. Fadte
(Partner)
(Membership No. 103999)

UDIN: 23103999BGXIJHN4722

Panaji, Goa, September 27, 2023
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Lega! and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (including capital work in progress
and relevant details of right of use assets).

(N(a)(A)

(iY(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.
Some of the Property, Plant and Equipment (including capital work in progress) were
physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a programme of
verification, which in our opinion provides for physical verification of all the Property, Plant
and Equipment (including capital work in progress) at reasonable intervals having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its activities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(1)(b)

The Company does not have any immovable properties (other than immovable properties
where the Company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the Company) and hence clause (i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

() (<)

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right of
Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

() (d)

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as
at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(i)(e)

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(i)(a)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs.5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time during the
year, from a bank on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to
the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly receivable statements comprising
of period end receivables and sales, submitted by the Company with such bank, are in
agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters,
except for the following:

(i)(b)

Quarte Sanctioned Details of the discrepancies Remarks
r ended amount to | Nature of | Nature of Amount (Rs. in lakhs) (including
which | current discrepancy As per As per Difference | subsequent
discrepancy | assets statement | unaudited (Short)/ | rectification, if
relates to submitted books of Excess | any)
(Rs. in accounts
lakhs)
31- 8,399 | Receivables | Mismatch 16,826 16,868 (42) | On account of
Mar-23 Sales 194,673 101,724 92,949 | typographical
error
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(iii) The Company has granted unsecured loans to its employees during the year in respect of
which:
(a) The Company has provided loans during the year and details of which are given
below:
Particulars Loans (Rs.
in lakhs
A. Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year:

- Others (employees) 94.97

B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect

of above:

- Others (employees) 104.16

The Company has not made investments in Firms and Limited Liability Partnerships
during the year. Further, the Company has not provided any advances in the nature
of loan and security, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other entity during the year.

(b) The terms and conditions of the loans provided during the year are, in our opinion,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal
amounts and receipts of interest are regular as per stipulation, as applicable.

(d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, in respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no
overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

(e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to the overdue of existing loans given
to the same parties.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees or
securities and hence reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(\v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
and hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the Company by
the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Act.

(vii)(a) In respect of statutory dues:
Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax, Cess and Other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally
been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities though there has been deiay
in remittances of ESIC and Provident fund dues in 2 cases.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident

Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Custom,

Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and Other material statutory dues applicable to

Company in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the
\‘,, date they became payable.
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(vii)(b)

(viii)

(ix)(a)

(ix)(b)

(ix)(c)
(ix)(d)
(ix)(e)

(ix)(f)
(x)(a)

(x)(b)

(xi)(a)

(xi)(b)
(xi)(c)
(xii)

(xiii)

\

Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited
as on March 31, 2023 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of the Nature of Forum where dispute Period to Amount

statue dues is pending which the (Rupees
amount in lakhs)
relates

Income Tax | Income  Tax | Income Tax Appellate | AY 2017-18 1,818.19
Act, 1961 Dues Tribunal- Appeals

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)
during the year.

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company
were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were
obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

The Company has not made any investment or given in new loans or advances to its
subsidiary during the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiary company.

The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during the
year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under
clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.



Deloitte

Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants LLP

(xiv)(a)

(xiv)(b)

(xv)

(xvi)(a)

(xvi)(b)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and
covering the period upto March 31, 2023.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Group does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC) as part of the Group as per
the definition of Group contained in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 and hence the reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order
is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund
specified in Schedule VII to the Act or special account in compliance with the provision of
sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of
the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.117364W / W100739)

Lyslashos

Varsha A. Fadte

Partner

(Membership No. 103999)
UDIN: 23103999BGXIHN4722

Panaji, Goa, September 27, 2023
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Balance sheet as at in ¥ Lakhs
. L Zlotes| March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 |
hssets — 1

Non-current assets e .

(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 (a) 20,147.55 14,228.83
(b) Capital Work in Progress 4 (b) 177.61 18.98
(c) Goodwill 5A 4213.16 4,213.16
(d) Other intangible assets 5A 112,14 33.52
(e) Right of use assets 5B 15,229.82 16,018.40
(f) Financial assets
i) Investment 6 1,501.00 1,501.00
I"ii) Others 7 1,325.89 2,167.85
(@) Income tax assets (net) 1,089.86 739,79
'(h) Other non-current assets 8 972.80 123.98 |
|(i) Deferred tax asset (net) 27d 2.844.11 | 3851.71 |
Total non-current assets ___ 47,613.94 42,897.22 |
| Currentassets
|(a) Financial assets
| i) Trade receivables 9 15,182.19 39,881.16
i) Cash and cash equivalents _ 10a 2077.20 470412 |
iil) Bank balances other than (ii) above 10b 11.34 560.52
iv) Others 1 5,749.40 6,226.86

(b) Other current assets 12 5,209.84 4,705.57

Total current assets _28,229.97 51,844.23 |

‘Total assets N 75,843.91 94,741.45 |

‘Equity and Liabilities |

Equity_ i - ]

\(a) Equity share capital 13 9,807.96 9,807.96 |

(b) Other equity 14 (25,999.61) __(33,514.44)

‘Total equity (16,191.65) (23,706.48)

Liabilities 1

_Non-current liabilities =

(a) Financial liabilities R

| 1) Borrowings 15 30,489.40 11,992.86
| ii) Lease Liabilites 34 8,824.47 10,899.74
|(b) Provisions 16 3,703.57 2,750.31 |

_Total non-current liabilities 43,017.44 25,642.91 |

Current liabilities ) |

{a) Financial liabilities

| i)Borrowings 17 981515|  16371.74
| i) Lease iabilities 34 5631,08 5.587.60
| _iii) Trade payables

| - Total outstanding due of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 18 - =

; Total outstanding due of other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 18 2,861.83 2,424.34

| iv)Others B 19 9,770.95 54,519.71 |

|(b) Provisions . 20 66.37 5236

(c) Other current liabilities 21 20,872.74 13,849.27

Total current liabilities 49,018.12 92,806.02 |

Total liabilites 92,035.56 118,447.93 |

| Total equity and liabilities 75,843.91 94,741.45
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DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

_Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended

in ¥ Lakhs

Notes March 31, 2023

March 31,2022 |

Revenue =
| Revenue from operations 22 101,724.32 73,921.13 |
| Other income 23 21876 1361.38

Total Income

101,943.08 | 7528251

Expenses —— i
' Employee benefits expense 24 63,436.47 43 505.08 |
| Finance costs 25 3,382.52 2,827.60 |
'Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense 4, 5A & 5B 8,726.39 ~ 8,915.71 |
Other expenses 26 ~17,566.09 |  11618.07 |
Total expenses 93,111.47  66,866.46 |
Profit before tax 8.831.61 | ~ 8,416.05 |
Tax Expense (net) 27
Current tax (3.00)
Deferred tax 11,0867 1

Total Tax Expense (net)

Profit for the year

1,083.17 |
774844 |

Other comprehensive loss

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(312.18) (149.31)|

Re-measurement of defined benefit plan - (149.
Income tax credit on the above 78571 24.56 |
Total other comprehensive profit / (loss) (23361 _,(JLZ(Z 5),
| Total comprehensive income for the year 7514831 8043.48
| "Earnings per equity share (in %, Face value ¥ 10 each) ]
| Basic and diluted 28 7.90 | ~ 8.33 |
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-40
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DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended o _in% Lakhs
[— Notes March 31, 2023 | _March 31, 2022_|
[ "A. Cash flow from Operating activities
_Net Profit before tax 8,831.61 8,416.05
Adjusiments for .
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense 8,726.39 8,915.71
Unrealised foreign exchange loss (net) 526.03 (174.77)
Liability / provision no longer require written back (9.84) (301.79)
“Bad debts written off 1.85 675.57
“Provision for doubtful financial assets 400.00 -
“Brovision for doubtful debfs and unbilled revenue 1,194.82 -
Brovision for doubtful debts written back - (402.53)
“Bad & doubtful advances/ balances written off 7.75 900.00 |
|“Interest income (149.77) (145.06)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments ~1.81 (42.86) |
“Financecosts 338252 2,827.60
“Operating profit before working capital changes 22,913.27 20,667.92
| Changes in working capital : i
Decrease/ (Increase) in trade and other receivables 24,016.31 (21,289.54)
Increase in trade and other payables 10,869.89 __§L664.91q_
Cash generated from operations 57,799.47 5,043.29
Income Taxes paid (347.07) (85.03)
“Net Gash flow generated from operafing activities (A) 57,452.40 4,958.26
| B. Cash flow from investing activities —
Purchase of property, plant and equipments and other intangibles assets (including capital
work in progress) (10,550.58) (3,037.24)
PBroceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 199.71 16426
| Interest received 18.87 51.02
| Fixed deposits redeemed/ (made) during the year 54918 (34.07)
| Payment fowards business combination (47,341.34) (4,450.00)
]"NEt'CEEI'l_wf"eJ in investing activities (B) (57,124.14) {7,306.03)
{"¢. Cash fiow from Financing activities
“Proceeds from Long-term borrowings 10,082.50 2399.00°
|"Repayment of Long-term borrowings 18.71) -
| Repayment of lease liabilifies (net) T (6,701.66) (6",6_9'5.'3?15'1
“Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net) 255.73 347380
“interest paid on lease liabilities (1,623.57) (1,495.93)
| "Finance costs paid (715.47) “(354.08)
) Nat cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities (C) 1,278.82 (2,672.93)
"Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,607.08 “16,020.70)
['Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 10a 47012 5,490.82
| Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10a 2,077.20 470.12 |
Disclosure as per Ind AS 7 (amended) is as follows:
R Non Cash 1
March 31, 2022 Cash flow movement March 31, 2023 I
| Borrowing - Non Current (refer note 18y 11,092.86 10,063.79 | 843275 | "30,469.40 |
[Borrawing - Current (refer note 17) 16,371.74 25573 7| (6,812.32) _“Q‘.'STETSJ
['Leasii.labilmes {refer note 34) 16,487.34 {6,707.66) 4,669.87 1445555
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-40
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DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended

A. Equity share capital

in ¥ Lakhs

Amount

March 31, 2021

9,807.96

Changes in equity share capital during the year

March 31, 2022

=

9,¢ 807 96 |

[Changes in eqmty share capltal durlng the year

| March 31, 2023

- AT

B. Other equity = . in¥lakhs
Reserves and Surplus ] |
Securities Capital Retained | Total
Premium Reserve Earnings |
[ s Account 1 ,
March 3j ,2021 v — 3684462 | _ (62,296.86)! __ (16,105. 68)| (41,557, 92)
Profit for the year (net of tax) - - 8,168.23 | . 8168 23 |
|Other comprehensive loss for the year (net of tax) - _ (124.75)! (124.75)
| March 31, 2022 36,844.62 | (62,296 § )| (8,062.20))  (33,514.44)
| Profit for the year (net of tax) - - 7,748.44 | 7,748.44
|Other comprehensive loss for the year (net of tax) - - 1 (23361) (233 61).
| March 31, 2023 36,844.62 __(6_2.29§.§§_)___ ____(547.37) __ (25,999.61)
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 140
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DNEG India Media Services Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements
1. General information

DNEG India Media Services Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company incorporated and
domiciled in India. The Company is the wholly owned subsidiary of Prime Focus World N.V. and the
ultimate holding company is Prime Focus Limited (“PFL”). The Company provides a variety of post-
production services including digital intermediate, visual special effects (VFX), two dimensions to three
dimensions (2D to 3D) conversion and other technical services to its immediate holding company and
other PFL group companies and to clients in the film, broadcast and commercial sectors. The address of
its registered office is Mainframe IT Park, Building H, Royal Palms, Aarey Colony, Goregaon (East),
Mumbai — 400 065.

2. Significant accounting policies
2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (herein
after referred to as ‘Ind AS') specified under section 133 and other relevant provisions of Companies Act,
2013.

2.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and / or disclosure purposes in these financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in
use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or

3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the

significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
assets or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

« Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division Il of Schedule IIl to the Companies Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of products and services and the time between acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as
twelve (12) months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is its functional currency
and all figures are converted into rupees lakhs rounded off to two decimals except as otherwise stated.

\




DNEG India Media Services Limited

2.3 Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions
considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the
reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the estimates used in
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to
these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the
periods in which the results are known/ materialise.

24 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of services.
Revenue is shown net of applicable taxes. Revenue (Income) is recognised when there is no significant
uncertainty as to its determination or realisation.

2.4.1 Rendering of services

The Company provides a variety of post-production services including digital intermediate, visual special
effects (VFX), two dimensions to three dimensions (2D to 3D) conversion and other technical services to
its immediate holding company and other PFL group companies and to clients in the film, broadcast and
commercial sectors.

Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognized as the related services are performed and the
revenues from the end of the last billing to the balance sheet date are recognized as unbilled revenues.
Revenue from services provided under fixed price contracts, where the outcome can be estimated
reliably, is recognized following the percentage of completion method, where revenue is recognized in
proportion to the progress of the contract activity. The progress of the contract activity is usually
determined as a proportion of hours spent up to the balance sheet date, which bears to the total hours
estimated for the contract. If losses are expected on contracts these are recognized when such losses
become evident. Further, the Company uses significant judgements while determmining the transaction
price allocated to various performance obligations in the revenue contract.

The Company has an agreement with its immediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries based on
which it has let out its operational capacity for execution of VFX and 2D to 3D conversion for projects
outsourced at related cost plus fixed margin of 15%. The Company accrues for this revenue based on
actual cost incurred during the period.

Unbilled revenue is included within ‘other financial assets’ and billing in advance is included as deferred
revenue in ‘Other current liabilities’.

2.4.2 Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on
a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

2.4.3 Rental income

The Company’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is described in note 2.5.1 below.
2.5 Leasing

2,51 The Company as lessor

Leases under which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Lease

contracts where all the risks and rewards are substantially transferred to the lessee, the lease contracts
are classified as finance leases. All cther leases are classified as operating leases.

!




DNEG India Media Services Limited

For leases under which the Company is an intermediate lessor, the Company accounts for the head-lease
and the sub-lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease is further classified either as a finance lease
or an operating lease by reference to the right-to-use asset arising from the head-lease.

In respect of assets provided on finance leases, amounts due from lessees are recorded as receivables
at the amount of the Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases. In respect of assets given on operating lease, lease rentals are
accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss, on accrual basis in accordance with the respective lease
agreements.

2.5.2 The Company as lessee

The Company enters into an arrangement for lease of buildings, plant and machinery including computer
software. Such arrangements are generally for a fixed period but may have extension or termination
options. The Company assesses, whether the contract is, or contains, a lease, at its inception. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to -

a. control the use of an identified asset,

b. obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identified asset, and

c. direct the use of the identified asset

The Company determines the lease term as the noncancellable period of a lease, together with periods
covered by an option to extend the lease, where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option.

The Company at the commencement of the lease contract recognizes a Right-to-Use asset at cost and
corresponding lease liability, except for leases with term of less than twelve months (short term leases)
and low-value assets. For these short term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The cost of the right-to-use asset comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
any lease payments made at or before the inception date of the lease, plus any initial direct costs, less
any lease incentives received.

Subsequently, the right-to-use assets are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The right-to-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line
method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-to-use asset.
The estimated useful life of right-to-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property,
plant and equipment.

The Company applies Ind AS 36 to determine whether an right-to-use asset is impaired and accounts for
any identified impairment loss. Refer 2.14 below.

For lease liabilities at the commencement of the lease, the Company measures the lease liability at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined, if that rate is not readily
determined, the lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate that the Company
would have to pay to borrow funds, including the consideration of factors such as the nature of the asset
and location, coliateral, market terms and conditions, as applicable in a similar economic environment.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.

The Company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the
right-to-use assets. Where the carrying amount of the right-to-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any remaining amount
of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss. Lease liability payments are classified as cash
used in financing activities in the statement of cash flows.
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DNEG India Media Services Limited

2.6 Foreign currency translation and transactions

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.”
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise

except for:

« exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for further
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

« exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks.

2.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Al other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
2.8 Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Company recognises as expense the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct
or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the balance sheet and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Company with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant
measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing
market interest rates.

Government grant under Service Export from India Scheme (SEIS) is given by providing duty scrip credit
for eligible exports. Under the scheme, service providers, located in India, are rewarded under the SEIS
scheme, for all eligible export of services from India. The Company claims SEIS at notified rates on the
net free foreign exchange earned. These duty credit scrips can be used for payment of basic custom duty
and are freely transferable. The Company recognizes SEIS as export incentive income once the
conditions related to such incentives are fulfilled by the Company.

2.9 Employee benefits
2.9.1 Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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DNEG India Media Services Limited

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit

method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-

measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with

a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-

measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings

and is not reciassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a

plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to

the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

e Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

o Net interest expense or income; and

¢ Re-measurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item
‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

A liability for termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the
offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

2.9.2 Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date.

210 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
2101 Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

2.10.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences arise from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

\




DNEG India Media Services Limited

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

2.10.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

211 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal group are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sale of such asset (or disposal group)
and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal group) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

212 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

PPE are stated at cost of acquisition or construction. They are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises the purchase price and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added to its book value only if it increases the future
benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standards of performance. All other
expenses on existing PPE, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing
parts, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses are
incurred. '

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values using the straight-line method over their useful lives
estimated by Management, which are similar to useful life prescribed under Schedule Il of the Companies
Act, 2013. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Cost of Leasehold improvements is amortised over a period of lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
_or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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243 Intangible assets
2.13.1 Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are acquired separately and are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

2.13.2 Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an

internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all the following have been demonstrated:

« the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it or sell it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and

to use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally generated intangible assets is the sum of expenditure
incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally generated intangible assets are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are separately acquired.

2.13.3 Useful lives of intangible assets

Software is amortised on straight line basis over the estimated useful life or the license period whichever
is applicable.

2.13.4 De-recognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is de-recognised.

214 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest of the cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impai&r:ent at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be jp{7age
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flow (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

2.15.1 Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An
onerous contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received
from the contract.

2.15.2 Restructurings

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Company has developed a detailed formal plan for the
restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by
starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The measurement
of a restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not
associated with the ongoing activities of the entity.

216 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit o‘::ss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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217 Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised or de-recognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

2.17.1 Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except

for debt instruments that are designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For the impairment policy on financial assets measured at amortised cost, refer note 2.17.5

Debt instruments that meets the following conditions are measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (except for debt instruments that are designed as at fair value through

profit or loss (FVTPL) on initial recognition):

o the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the purposes of
recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets
measured at amortised cost. Thus, exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated is reclassified to profit or loss.

For the impairment policy on debt instruments at FVTOCI, refer Note 2.17.5.
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

2.17.2 Effective interest method

The effective interest is a method of calculating the amortised cost of debt instruments and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where applicable, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income”
line item.

2.17.3 Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to
investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading.
These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the

Envestmei:s.
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A financial asset is held for trading if.

« it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

 on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Company's
right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment
and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in profit or loss are included
in the 'Other income' line item.

2.17.4 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments other than in equity shares in subsidiaries, are classified as FVTPL,
unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value
in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading (see
note 2.17.3 above).

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are
measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI
criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial measurement if such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities
or recognising the gains and losses on them on different basis. The Company has not designated any
debt instruments at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains
or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other
income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company's right to
receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the
amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

2.17.5 Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, other
contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at
FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive
(i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective
interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash
flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected
credit losses that represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months
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If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model
in the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the
previous period, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit
losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that
assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the
Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss
allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally
applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

2.17.6 De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for the amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company

continues to recognise the financial asset and also a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if
such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial
asset.

_On derecognition of financial asset other than its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to
repurchase part of the transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no
longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of
the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to
it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or losses if such gain
or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between
the part that continues to be recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair value
of those parts.

2.17.7 Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
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o For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss except for those which are designated as
hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

» Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes
in foreign currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.

e For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are
treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, exchange differences on the amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.17.8 Investment in subsidiaries.

The Company has accounted for its investments in subsidiaries at cost less impairment loss (if any).
2.18 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

2.18.1 Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability
and equity instrument.

2.18.2 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs. '

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.

2.18.3 Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments (convertible notes) issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company's own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recognised as a liability on an
amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’'s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole. This is recognised and
included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in
which case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to other component of equity. When the
conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.
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2.18.4 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or
at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for de-
recognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued
by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest
rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

2.18.4.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration
recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or
held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

¢ it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

¢ on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration recognised by
the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies, may be designated
as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

¢ such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise;

o the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed, and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and the Ind AS 109 permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 108.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid
on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

However, for financial liabilities that are not held for trading and are designated as at FVTPL, the amount
of change in fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability
is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes mismatch
in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk that are recognised in other
comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently
reclassified in profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are
designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

2.18.4.2 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities
that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.
Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line

item. \‘
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The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

2.18.4.3 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the tems of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not

designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

e The amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS
109; and

e The amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised
in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.

2.18.4.4 Commitments to provide a loan at below-market interest rate

Commitments to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are initially measured at their. fair values

and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

e the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109;
and

« the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised
in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115.

2.18.4.5 Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at
the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the
amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income’.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. For financial liabilities that
are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses
and is recognised in profit or loss.

2.18.4.6 De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially
different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition
of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
(whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of a debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of
the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

2.18.5 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of
the hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item.
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2.18.6 Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non- derivative host contracts that are not financial assets within the scope of
Ind AS 109 are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

2.19  Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity
shares into Equity shares.

2.20 New Accounting standards:

On March 31, 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023. This notification has resulted into amendments in the following
existing accounting standards which are applicable to Company from April 01, 2023.

i. IND AS101-First-time Adoption of indian Accounting Standards
ii. IND AS102 - Share-based Payments
ii. IND AS103 - Business Combinations

iv. IND AS107 - Financial Instruments Disclosures

V. IND AS109 - Financial Instruments

Vi. IND AS115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

vil. IND AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

viii. IND AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
iX. IND AS 12 - Income Taxes

X. IND AS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting

Application of above amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the Company's
financial statements.

3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the management
of the Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experiences and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods. L
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3.1.1 Revenue recognition

The Company also derives revenues from fixed price VFX and 2D to 3D content conversion contracts.
The revenue recognised on these contracts is dependent on the estimated percentage of completion at
a point in time, which is calculated on the basis of the man days of work performed as a percentage of
the estimated total man days to complete a contract. The actual man days and estimated man days to

complete a contract are updated on a monthly basis.

The estimated man days remaining to complete a project are judgmental in nature and are estimated by
experienced staff using their knowledge of the time necessary to the work.

If a contract is expected to be loss making, based on estimated costs to complete, the expected loss is
recognised immediately.

3.1.2 Taxation

The Company makes estimates in respect of tax liabilities and tax assets. Full provision is made for
deferred and current taxation at the rates of tax prevailing at the year-end unless future rates have been
substantively enacted. These calculations represent our best estimate of the costs that will be incurred
and recovered but actuals may differ from the estimates made and therefore affect future financial results.
The effects would be recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Deferred tax assets arise in respect of unutilised losses and other timing differences to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised or to the
extent they can be offset against related deferred tax liabilities. In assessing recoverability, estimation is
made of the future forecasts of taxable profit, including for transactions expected to be consummated
during the current year. If these forecast profits do not materialise, they change, or there are changes in
tax rates or to the period over which the losses or timing differences might be recognised, then the value
of deferred tax assets will need to be revised in a future period.

3.1.3 Depreciation and useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking
into account their estimated residual value. Intangible assets are amortised over its estimated useful lives.
Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to
determine the amount of depreciation/ amortisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful
lives and residual values are based on the Company’s historical experience with similar assets and take
into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation/ amortisation for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

3.1.4 Expected credit losses on financial assets

The impairment provision of financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default and expected
timing of collection. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s history of collections, customer's creditworthiness,
existing market condition as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

3.1.5 Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future
outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably
estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of judgement
to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. Since the cash outflows can take
place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly
and adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

b
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3.1.6 Defined benefit obligations

The costs of providing other post-employment benefits are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
in accordance with Ind AS 19 “Employee benefits” over the period during which benefits is derived from
the employees’ services and is determined based on valuation carried out by independent actuary. The
costs are determined based on assumptions selected by the management. These assumptions include
salary escalation rate, discount rates, expected rate of return on assets and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to change in these assumptions.

3.1.7 The Company recognises Goodwill that has arisen through business acquisition.

Goodwill is subject to impairment review to ensure that it is not carried above its recoverable value.
Review is performed at least annually at end of each year end or more frequently if events or
circumstances indicate that this is necessary.

Impairment review is performed by comparing the carrying value of the cash generating unit with its
recoverable amount, being the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is
valuation derived from the discounted future cash flows of cash generating unit. The most important
estimates in these forecast cash flows are the long term growth rates used to calculate revenue growth
in perpetuity and the discount rates which are applied to the future cash flows. These estimates are
reviewed at least annually and are believed to be appropriate. However, changes in these estimates could
change the outcomes of the impairment reviews and therefore affect future financial results. The effects
would be recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss, through operating profit.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five
year period. Cash flows beyond a five year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates
stated above. (Refer note 5A).
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4 (a) Property, plant and equipment

- inZ Lakhs
B Plantand Furnitureand | Lease Hold Office ] }
. equipment fixtures Improvement | equipments Vehicles _Total |

. Gross block I |
March 31, 2022 47,364.93 3,319.00 1,633.28 3,636.51 24.64 55,978.36 |
Additons 7.943.06 470.83 403.82 484.96 168.01 9,470.68 |
| Deduction (320.02) - - (11.76) (5.19)| (336 97)|
i March 31,2023 54,987.97 | 3,789.83 2,037.10 4,109.71 1_8]____§1.’__ 65,112, 07 j
I
II Accumulated depreciation R R—
| March 31, 2022 35,213.45 2,604.82 1,345.00 2,565.71 20.55 41,749.53 |
| For the year - 2,561.22 260.63 157.05 395.65 1444 | 3 _3&8_@ |
'Deduction ____{(161.31) - - 40| (3.22)  (174.00)
‘March 31, 2023 37,613.36 2,865.45 1,502.05 | 295189 = 3177 44 964 52 [
Net block (I - Il) N I
March 31, 2023 17,374.61 924.38 535.05 1,157.82|  155.69 | 20,1 47._55 |
I o B Plant and Furnitureand | Lease Hold Office } ' ;
I__ equipment fixtures Improvement | equipments Vehicles | Total |
| I. Gross block . o |
' March 31, 2021 43,814.28 2,841.63 1,534.14 2,577.26 24.64 50,791.95 |
| Additions 2,917.10 477.37 99.14 1,059.25 - 4,552.86 |
' _Adjustments (refer note b below) 684.66 - - - | - - 684. 66 |
| Deduction (51.11) - - - 1 = (51 11)'
IMa_r_cb_:’a_l 2022 47,364.93 3,319.00 1,633.28 3,636.51 2464 58, 978.36 |
UIIl. Accumulated depreciation | B - -
March 31,2021 | 3154589 2,133.95 1,187.96 1,763.95 17.82 | 36,649.57 |
__F_og@_year - 3,064.70 470.87 157.04 801.76 273 449710
| Additions on business combination 650.60 - - - - | 65060
| Deduction (47.74) - - - . | (47. 74)
‘March 31, 2022 . _35,213.45 2,604.82 1,345.00 2,565.71|  20.85|  41,749.53
|
" Net block (I - Ii) I R R R S . 1
| 'March 31, 2022 12,151.48 714.18 288.28 1 070 80| 409  14,228.83
‘Notes:
a. Refer note 15 and 17 for assets pledged / hypothecated.
b. Adjustments is on account of completion of lease term and assets getting transferred as owned assets.
4 (b) Capital work in progress (CWIP) ageing schedule:
[ March 31,2023 Amount for a period of |
| Less than 1 More than 3 | |
I - year 1-2year 2 -3 year years __Total ‘
Project 1 9.93 3.20 - - 1313 |
Project 2 164.48 - - - 164.48 |
[Total - 174.41 3.20 - - 177.61 |
March 31, 2022 Amount for a period of |
Less than1 More than 3 |
year 1-2year 2 -3 year years Total |
Project1 18.98 - - - 18.98 |
| Total 18.98 - - - 18.98 |
Note:

There are no capital work in progress where completion is overdue against original planned timelines or where estimated cost exceeded its original
planned cost as on March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.
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5A. Goodwill and other Intangible Assets

. _inZlakhs
. Description of Assets | Goodwill ## | Software |  Total
LGrossblock R -
' March 31, 2022 19,704.14 | __‘___9_9_9 .03 | 20,4037
CAdditons o382 13872
| March 31, 2023 _.__._;_.._.__...-..-..________,‘.h...f..._'___L,127°41 4 83775‘ ~20,541.89
. _ | _ 1 Y — -
L. Agcumulated amortisation and lmpalrment { ; I S
| March 31, 2022 - | 1549098 | 66551  16,156.49
Forthevyear - | 60100 60.10 |
March31,2023 | 1549098 | 72561 16,216.59

| | r
(Netblock(I-W) IR | I A
| March 31,2023 . - | 421316|  11214]  4,325.30
Description of Assets Goodwill ## | Software |  Total |
LGrossblock I N I |
March31,2021 - - 19,704.14 | 591.29 |  20,295.43
Addtons = 2650 2550
(Adjustments# T e24| 8224
'March31,2022 —— | 699.03|  20,403.17
| |

_lI_Apgy_rpglgy_ag amortisation and |mpa|rment 1 1
| March 31, 2021 - 15,490.98 | 548.93 |  16,039.91 |
' Fortheyear - | 35.77.| ~35. 77'
Adjustments # L - I sosi| 8081
T —— T 549088 6551 1615649
Netblock (-1 I I A
March31,2022 T agiade| sas2| 424668

Notes:
# Adjustments are on account of completion of lease term and assets getting transferred as owned assets.

## On June 30, 2014, the Company (through the amalgamated company namely DNEG Creative Services Limited) acquired
the “backend business” of providing services of 2D to 3D conversion and visual special effects (“VFX") from Prime Focus Ltd,
the ultimate holding company on a going concern basis by way of slump sale for a total consideration of Z 22,970.49 lakhs. On
allocation of purchase consideration to the assets and liabilities taken over, the difference between the purchase consideration
and the fair/ book value of net assets acquired aggregating  19,704.14 lakhs was accounted for as ‘Goodwill’. The recoverable
amount of Goodwill has been tested at the balance sheet date internally by the management. It has been determined on a
value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the Directors. Assumptions
used in previous year by an independent valuer have been updated for current year. The projections cover a period of five
years, which is considered to be the most appropriate timescale over which to review and consider annual performances before
applying a fixed terminal value multiple to the final year cash flows. The growth rates used to estimate future performance are
based on the conservative estimates from past performance. EBITDA margins are based on historical performance and
Company's strategies.

Weighted Average Cost of Capital % (WACC) = Risk free return + (Market risk premium x Beta variant for the Company).

Following key assumptions were considered while performing Impairment testing:
[ ~ | March 31, 2023 |

'Long term sustainable growth rates _ o 2.00%,
{Weighted Average Cost of Capital % (WACC) after tax L 13.95%.

Based on the above, the Company has concluded that the goodwill amount is fully recoverable as on March 31, 2023.
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5B. Right of Use Assets

- _inZlakhs
} Plant and Office !
' Description of Assets equipment Building equipments Software _Total
I Gross Block i
|March 31,2022 i 21,572.14 10,399.56 5.21 142.02 32,118.93 |
|Additions - : 2,655.92 795.70 - 1,075.75 4,527.37
|Deletions | (427.83) (309.17) - I _(737.00)
March 31, 2023 23,800.23 10,886.09 5.21 1,217.77 | 35 ,909.30
_ |
{lIl. Accumulated Depreciation |
March 31, 2022 11,416.23 4,540.61 4.95 138.74 16,100.53
For the year 2,945.67 2,289.67 - 41.96 5,277.30
Deletions ] (389.18) (309.17) 2 ez (698.35)|
March 31, 2023 13,972.72 6,521.11 4.95 180.70 r___ a 20 679 48
[Netblock (I-1) . . AU F— 1
{March 31, 2023 9,827.51 4,364.98 0.26 1,037.07 | 15,229.82
Plant and Office ]
Description of Assets equipment Building equipments Software Total ____
|I. Gross Block ' i ]
‘March 31, 2021 17,541.85 8,014.55 3.60 224.26 25,784.26 |
Additions 4,729.31 2,815.86 1.61 - 7,546.78 |
Adjustments # (684.66) - - (82.24) __(7686. 90)
Deletions 14.36) (430.85) - B — _(445. 21)
March 31, 2022 21,572.14 10,399.56 5.21 142.02 32,1893 ;
l |
{iIl. Accumulated Depreciation - |
{March 31, 2021 9,768.74 2,786.60 3.42 217.35 12,776.11 |
jFor the year 2,308.48 2,070.63 1.53 2.20 4,382.84 |
|Adjustments # (650.43) - - (80.81) (731 24)1
|Deletions § (10.56) (316.62) - L - | (327.18)]
'March 31,2022 11,416.23 4,540.61 4.95 ~ 13874 16,100.53 |
i R |
'Net block (- _ — .. p
March 31, 2022 10,155.91 5,858.95 0.26 | 328  16,018.40

# Adjustments are on account of completion of lease term and assets getting transferred as owned assets

)




DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

6. Non-current Investment

in ¥ Lakhs’

March 31, 2023

|

March 31, 2022

Unquoted eqmty instrument, fully paid up (at cost)
Investment in subsidiaries:

Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited 1,501.00 1,501. 00
20,000 equity shares of % 10/- each
Total } 150100 1501.00
7. Other non-current financial assets (Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise specified) in ¥ Lakhs
| _ March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 |
‘Deposits to related parties 345.05 530.00 |
Deposits to others 580.84 ~ 837.85
Others * T |
Considered good 400.00 ~800.00
Doubtful 400.00 -
Total 800.00 ~800.00 |
Less: Allowances for doubtful flnanmal assets (400.00) -
Total Others * (Net) 400.00 ~800.00
| Total 132589 |  2,167.85
“Others include participation rights in box office collection for feature films -
8. Other non-current assets (Unsecured, considered good) ~_in%lakhs
"March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 |
Capital advances 87478  119.50 |
' Prepaid expenses 98.02 448
Total 972.80 |  123.98
9. Trade receivable (Unsecured) in ¥ Lakhs
- March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Trade receivables 18,618.38 42 318.12 |
Less: Allowances (3436.19)  (2,436.96)
Total - 15,8219 | 39,881.16_
The movement in allowance for bad and doubtful debts is as follows: AP
| Balance as at the beginning of the year 2,436.96 _2,839.49 |
| Allowances made during the year 999.23 |  (402.53) ]
| Balance as at the end of the year 343619 | 2,436 96 |

Trade receivables - ageing and other details

- - Undisputed trade receivables |
Considered |Which have significant {
March 31, 2023 good risk Credit impaired !
Less than 6 months 13,082.66 : - - |
6 months - 1 year 2,096.94 “ =
1-2year - 507.21 - =
2 - 3 year 248.96 = ) 1
More than 3 years - 872.70 1,809.91 =
Total 16,808.47 - 1,809.91 =]
Undisputed trade receivables |
Considered | Which have significant

March 31, 2022 good risk Credit impaired
Less than 6 months 39,5623.57 = o - |
6 months - 1 year 391.23 - N
1-2year 200.78 36.74 -
2 -3 year 270.42 130.80 1
More than 3 years 115.47 1,649.11 N
Total . 40,501.47 1,816.65 -

b
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10. Cash and cash equivalents

in ¥ Lakhs

[

i

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022 |

""a. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 1.43 0.48
Bank balances i
In Current Accounts 2,075.77 | 469.64
Total T 2,077.20 | 47012
"'b. Bank balances other than (a) above B |
In deposits * - 11.34| 56052 |
Total 11.34|  560.52 |
* pertains to fixed deposits provided as security towards bank guarantees issued. .
11. Other current financial assets (Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise specified) in ¥ Lakhs
";mmmwmmw_w - March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 |
' Unbilled revenue® 1,430.74 3,023.13 |
| Export incentives receivable 799.33 721.22 |
Interest Accrued on bank deposits 0.11 389
Advances to related parties 413.96 364.94 |
Deposits to related parties 786.56 786.56 |
Security deposits to others |
Considered good 882.82 ~ 107.86 |
' Doubtful 97.60 9760 |
' Total 980.42 205.46 |
| Less: Allowances (97.60) (97.60)
| Total Security deposits to others (net) 882.82 107.86 |
Others* 1,435.88 |  1,219.26 |
Total ' 574940 | 6,226.86
*Net off provision of unbilled revenue ¥195.59 Lakhs (Previous year: Z Nil). - ' o
A Others include expenses recoverable from third party, and loans and advances to employees.
_12. Other assets (Current) in ¥ Lakhs
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 |
Prepaid expenses 174.85 255.71
' Advances to suppliers R ——
Considered good 55.77 97.39 |
Doubtful 50.47 5047
Total 106.24 |  147.86
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (50.47)|  (50.47)
Total advances to suppliers (net) 5577  97.39

Others #

Total

# Others include Goods and Services Tax input credit.
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13Equity share capital

(i) Authorised and issued share capital _ e in % Lakhs
[ o March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
| Authorised (post amalgamation): i ]
| 98,250,000 Shares of % 10/- each - __ T 982500  9,825.00 |
1 1,200,C 000 10% Redeemable Non-Convertible Preference shares of % 1/- each o 1200 | A1200 |
| Total T 9,837.00 | ~9,837.00

[ Issued, subscribed and paid-Up: - _: | o
| 98,079,600 shares of ¥ 10/- each 98079 |  9807.96
(Total . 880786 9,807.96
(n) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding ) - - -
. March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

- _ | No of Shares in¥lLakhs | NoofShares |  in¥Lakhs

/At the beginning of the year . | 98,079,600 9,807.96 98,079,600 | 9,807.96
|Atthe end oftheyear 98,079,600 9,807.96 98, 079_600 | 9,807.96
Note:

98,079,600 Shares of ¥ 10/- each were allotted to Prime Focus World N.V. as part of scheme of amalgamation.

Scheme of Amalgamation:

The scheme of amalgamation of DNEG Creative Services Limited (DCSL), erstwhile Holding Company of the Company and Double
Negative India Private Limited (DNIPL), fellow subsidiary of the Company (together referred to as "the amalgamating companies") with the-
Company was approved by the-Board of Directors at its meeting held on June 17,2019 with an appointed date of April 01, 2019. All the three
entities are in the business of providing post-production services to Prime Focus World NV, the intermediate holding company. The said
scheme had been approved by National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT") on March 12, 2020. This common control business combination
had been accounted as per the scheme and in accordance with Appendix C of Ind AS 103 "Business Combinations". Further, in terms of the
scheme, 98,079,600 equity shares of ¥10 each of the Company are outstanding to be issued and allotted as fully paid up to the
shareholders of the DCSL as at March 31, 2020. This amount has been included under "Other Equity". Equity Shares were allotted to share

holders of the Company on April 01, 2020 as part of scheme of amalgamation.

(iii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 each. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in
case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after

distribution of all liabilities, in proportion to their shareholding.

(iv) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters:

- [ March 31, 2023 March31,2022
|Promoter name e No of shares % of total No of shares | % of total shares
[Prime Focus World N.V. 98,079,600 100%! 98079600 100%
Total - 98,079,600 100% 98,079,600 | ~ 100%

14. Other equity in T Lakhs

__March 31, 2023 |

March 31, 2022

| Securities premium

| As per last balance sheet - 36,844.62 | 36,844.62 |
“Total - 36, 844.62 | 3'5 84462

| Capital reserve B -
As per last balance sheet ) __(62,296. 86)| L (62 296 86)

Total (62.296.86)  (62,296.86)|

|

| Retained earnings * ——

["As per last balance sheet (8.062.20) (16,105. 68)
| Add: Total comprehensive income for the year T 7,514 83 1T 18,043.48

!L’E‘_'_ i - I ( ; (8,062.20)

Total (25,9¢ 9;q1)| ~ T (33,514.44)

* Includes Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (net of tax), loss of ¥584.91 Lakhs (Previous year ¥351.30 Lakhs).

*
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15. Non Current Borrowings . ) = in ¥ Lakhs
- . il | March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
\Term Loan from Banks (Secured) (refernote (a)) i 2,149.10 _2,399.00 |
|Loans from related parties in foreign currency (Unsecured) (refer note (b)) 2822149 | £93_.‘8__6_:
{Vehicle Loan from Bank (Secured) (refer note (c)) 11881} - |
Total - T 30483.40 | 11,892.86 |
Notes: R T '

(a) Working Capital Term Loan facility obtained in India is 100% Credit Guaranteed by National Credit Guarantee Trust
Company Limited under Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme. It carries second charge over present and future
current assets, movable fixed assets and properties of Parent's India business (excluding specific assets charged against
finance lease), second charge by way of pledge over 30% shares of Prime Focus Technologies Limited and pledge of
shares of the Parent held by Parent's promoters. Tenor of the loan is 6 years from September 2021, repayable in 48 equal
instalments after moratorium of 2 years. Interest rate applicable is 1% over 1 year MCLR subject to cap 0f 9.25% p.a..

(b) Foreign currency loans from related parties are long term unsecured loans availed from its fellow subsidiary company at
an interest rate of Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) + 375 bps at the time of drawdown of loan. During the year, the
Company has extended the terms for repayment with the lender, based on which the principal is repayable at the end of 10
years from the respective drawdown i.e., ¥12,204.82 Lakhs is payable during the financial year 2029-30, ¥5,860.79 Lakhs is
payable during the.financial year 2030-31 and 210,155.88 Lakhs is payable during the financial year 2031-32. (Previous
Year: 28,089.41 lakhs was payable at the end of 3 years from drawdown and balance was payable at the end of 5 years
from drawdown). Interest is payable annually in arrears.

(c) Vehicle loan is secured by hypothecation of the vehicle, repayable in equal monthly instalments over the period of 5 years.
Interest rate applicable is 7.9% p.a..

_____ _ ____in%Llakhs
' March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022 |

\Provision for employee benefits |

‘Provision for gratuity 3,411.33 | 2,750.31 |
oirer _ | —
"Provision for asset retirement obligation (Refer note 16.2) 20224 -
Total 370357 275031
N ——JTA E — il

16.1 The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts, for which any provision was required
for foreseeable losses and not provided for.

16.2 Provision for asset retirement obligation is recognised in respect of leases based on the expectations of usage of the
properties, cost of removal, restoration cots, inflation and applicable discount rate. The usage of properties is generally

expected for a period of 10 years.
in % Lakhs

[ Movement in other provisions

March 31, 2023

March 31,2022 |

Opening Balance

262.10

Add: Provision created during the year S = |
| Add: Unwinding of discount 3014 -
| Closing Balance 292.24 —

in ¥ Lakhs

17. Borrowings (Current)

March 31, 2023

i§hort-term demand loan (Secured)

| March 31,2022 |

linvoice discounting faciliy (refer note (a)) 5,950.35_ 589452
'Current maturities of long term borrowings l - _

iLoans from related parties in foreign currency (Unsecured) (refer note 15(b)) 2,264.92 | ~9,492.03 |
[Term Loan from Banks (Secured) (refer note 15(a)) 268.74 | =]
Vehicle Loan from Bank (Secured) (refer note 15(c)) 29.22 | .|

|

'Short-term demand loan (Unsecured) |
[Loans from related parties (refer note (b)) 1,301.82 | . 985.19 |
Total 981515 | 1637174

¥ SE—
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Notes:

(a) The Company has availed post shipment credit in foreign currency against the sanctioned limit of 60 crores at a rate of
interest ranging from 4.3% p.a. to 9.3% p.a.(March 31, 2022: 3.6% p.a. to 5.6% p.a.) and for a tenor up to 6 months from
Yes Bank Ltd. The above facility is secured against; (i) First pari passu charge on current assets and movable fixed assets of
the Company; (ii) Pledge of shares of the ultimate holding company held by promoters; (iiy Corporate guarantee of Prime
Focus World NV; (iv) Corporate guarantee of the ultimate holding company; (v) Personal guarantee of the promoters of
ultimate holding company; (vi) Pledge of 30% shares of subsidiaries and group companies viz: the Company, Prime Focus
Technologies Limited, PF World Limited, Mauritius, Prime Focus Luxembourg s.a.r.l., Prime Focus 3D Cooperartief U.A,,
Prime Focus Technologies Inc. (USA), DAX PFT LLC (USA), Prime Focus Technologies UK Limited, Prime Post (Europe)
Limited and Dneg India Media Services Limited held by the ultimate holding company directiy or indirectly. At the year end
March 31, 2023, the outstanding is ¥ 5,950.35 Lakhs and as at March 31, 2022, the outstanding was ¥ 5,894.52 Lakhs.

(b) Loans from related parties are short term unsecured loans availed from a subsidiary company at an interest rate of 8%
p.a. and are repayable on demand.

18. Trade payables _ = __inZlakhs
i . March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
|Trade payables to other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 2,574.01 _2,017.37 |
[Due to group companies 28782  406.97
Total —r _ 286183 |  2424.34
Note: ' o -

According to the records available with the Company, there were no transactions and dues payable to entities that are
classified as Micro and Small Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 for all the
above periods.

N ) in ¥ Lakhs
[Trade Payables - ageing and other details March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
|Accruals 1,336.98 | 863.21 |
Notdue 307.35 40.87 |
Less than 6 months - 91255 | 1,396.18 |
|6 months - 1 year 96.81 088
|1-2 Years . 7398 778
12 -3 Years 13.13 115.43 |
More than 3years A I
Total 286183 242434
_19. Other current financial Liabilities in ¥ Lakhs
o March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 |
Accrued salaries and benefits 799760 | 519846 |
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 166.42 | 200.01
Due to group companies 955.09 98204 |
Capital Creditors 661.84 797.86 |
Deferred Consideration - 4734134
Total ~ __977095| 54,519.71
—— - - . e L2

There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 125 of the Companies
Act, 2013 as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: Nil)

20. Current provisions __in¥ Lakhs
[ - March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022 |
{Provision for employee benefits '

6637|5236

|Provision for gratuity i ey ]
Total . 6637|  52.36]
Note:

The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts, for which any provision was required for
foreseeable losses and not provided for.

21. Other current liabilities in % Lakhs
L March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
{Deferred revenue 19,372.50 12,764.13 |
\Deposits from customers 473.13 ~400.03 |
|Statutory dues 996.66 | 679.49 |
|Customer advances 3045, 562
Total 2087274| 1384927

\
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22. Revenue from operations in  Lakhs
[ March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
| Sale of services 99,272.52 72,518.77
' Other operating income
| Management Fees Income 1,655.67 1,101.14
“Export incentives o 896.13 | 301.22 |
Total ~101,724.32 | 73,921.13

23. Other income

in 2 Lakhs

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Interest income from financial assets held at amortised cost:

Interest Income on bank deposit 9.22 49.12
| Interest Income - On Income Tax Refunds 5.87 -
| Interest Income - Others 134.68 95.94
Exchange gain (net) - 408.39
“Provision for doubtful debts written back - 402.53
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipments - 4286
Llabilily / provision no longer require written back 9.84 301.79
“Miscellaneous income 59.15 60.75
| Total 218.76 1,361.38
24, Employee benefits expense in % Lakhs
[ March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries and wages 60,720.01 41,760.81
| Gratuity (Refer N Note_29_}l - . 831.85 750.43
| Stock Option expense - (0.32)
[_ng_rlbutton to provident and other funds (Refer Note 29) 1,193.81 827.27
Staff welfare expenses 690.80 _166.89 |
|_ “Total 63,436.47 43,505.08
25. Finance costs in T Lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
| Interest on term loan 221.91 90.71
[Interest on lease liabilities 1,623.57 1,495.93
| Interest on working capital finance 356.19 214.04
| Interest on vehicle loan 8.39 -
| Interest on related party loans 1,125.49 952.19
| Interest on others 39.38 64.16
| Bank charges - 7.59 10.57_
| Total 338252 | 2827.60 |
26. Other expenses in ¥ Lakhs
| March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rent ) - 2,180.78 1,985.74
_Electricity charges 2,161.25 1,918.33
| Technical service cost 2,274.42 1,233.17
| Legal and professional fees 593.34 128.38
House-keeping charges 332.20 140.38
Communication charges 705.50 §16.77
Travelling and conveyance expense 606.42 316.71
Commission & Brokerage 9.60 11.40
Security charges 316.51 214.25
_Technician fees 3,110.68 1,182.17
Insurance cost 129.15 140.84
_Rates and taxes 28.98 153.47
_Repairs & Maintenance - Equipments 442.36 286.99
Repairs & Maintenance - Building 541.26 480.54
Repairs & Maintenance - Vehicles 24.50 18.57
Provision for doubtful financial assets 400.00 -
Provision for doubtful debts and unbilled revenue 1,194.82 -
Exchange loss (net) 934.87 12.53
Bad debts written off 1.85 675.57
Bad & doubtful advances/ balances written off 7.75 900.00
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments 1.91 =]
Corporate social responsibility (Refer Note 36) 90.00 42.51
| Payments to auditors (excluding GST):
Audit fees 25.00 25.00
For other services (certification) 1.00 =]
L Miscellaneous expenses 1,451.94 1 523;1;"7‘5
| Total 17,566.09 11,618.07

b
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27. Tax expense

a. Tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (net) - _inZ Lakhs
.' | March 31, 2023 1 March 31, 2022
Currenttax - ' - -
|Current tax in respect of earlier years - (3 00)1__ L ___(1__08)
|Deferred Tax ) 108617 248.90 |
Total tax expense recognised in statement of profitand loss (net) | 1,08347 | 247.82
b. Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income in ¥ Lakhs
— March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 |
'Re-measurement of defined benefit obligation __(7857) (24.56)
\Income tax (credit) recognised in other comprehensive income (78 57)1 - ___(2!_} 56)|
c. The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
in Z Lakhs
_ March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022 |
\Profit beforetax - 883161 |  8416.05
Applicable Taxrate S 2517% 2517%
Computed tax expense - 222274 211815
‘Tax Effect of: o I 1
'Effect of amortisation of intangible assets under tax laws considered as ! !
permanent difference | (1,196.35) | ~ (770.55)
Previously unrecognised deferred tax asset/ liability on temporary | |
differences - (380.79)
‘Common control business combinations accounted for as per Appendix C - |
of Ind AS 103 (Refer note 37) o _(625.57)
Impact on account of prior years taxation (3.00)| ~(1.08)
{Others 50.78 | (92.34)
‘Tax Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss (net) 1,083.17 24782

The tax rate used for reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate payable by corporate entities in India on taxable

profit under the Income tax laws.

d. Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

in ¥ Lakhs

March 31, 2023 |

March | 31, 2022

éDeferred tax (assets) on temporary. differences

Total o ___‘: —

__(2,844.11)]
(2,844.11)

(3, 851. 71)|
~ (3,851.71)]
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in 2 Lakhs
' ' o March 31, | Recognised | Recognised | March 31, Recognised| Recognised | March31, |
| 2021 in Profit/ in OCI 2022 in Profit/ |in OCI during| 2023
| Loss during | during the Loss during | the previous | |
| the previous | previous the year year ! :
‘ year year i [
|Deferred tax liability R 1
| Difference between tax books and written 1,180.64 (678.92) - 501.72 521.15 | - 1,022.87 |
|down value of PPE, other intangible assets [ | ;
‘ap_@ght of use assets R | [
| Total - . 1,180.64 (678.92) = - 501.72| 52115 | - | 1,022.870 |
|_l;l_eferred taxasset = _ I S| S |
|Provision for gratuity / bonus/ leave provision 761.63 212.85 24.56 08904 | 22724 | 78.57 | 1,304.85 |
[Provision for doubtful advances and debts 494.52 156.08 - 650.60 40138 - | 1,051.98
|Lease Deposit Discounting & Equalisation 75.23 40.33 - 115.56 (23.49)1 - | 9207
|Merger related expenses 14.86 (2.11) - 12.75 (5.70) - | 705
|Lease liabilities . | 89r.11 (740.21) - 156.90 14474 - | 30164
|Unabsorbed depreciation and carried forward 3,013.34 (594.76) - 2,418.58 (1,309.19) - 1,109.39
losses ;
I'I'_gga_l — - e 5,256.69 (927.82) 24.56 4,353.43 |  (565.02)! 7857 |  3,866.98 |
|Total . {4,076.05) 248.90 (24.56)| (3,851.71) _ 1,086.17 | (78.57)|  (2,844.11)

Note: The Company is mainly a cost plus entity rendering services to its immediate holding company and other fellow subsidiaries, has been profitable

over the years and the revenue from operations have continued to grow in recent years.
unabsorbed depreciation, thereby deferred tax asset is recognised.

Hence, there is reasonable certainty on utilisation of

L

_28Earnings per share _ o [ __in% Lakhs
| Particulars | March31, | March31, |
| — - 2023 | 2022
1_[\;&; Profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders _ 774844 |  8/168.23 |
. Number | Number |
{ Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS | 98,079,600 | 98,079,600 |
| Earnings per share = ]
[BasicEPS(R) 780 833
| Diluted EPS (%) | 7eo!  833|
| Face value per share | 10.00 10.00 |

29. Employee benefits
a. Defined contribution plans

The Company's defined contribution plans are provident fund, Employee State Insurance and employees' pension scheme (under the provisions of the

Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952).

‘Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognised as expense for the year is as under: ___in¥lakhs
’ March 31, | March31, |
! o 2023 | 2022
| Employer's contribution to provident and other funds _1,19381 |  827.27

b. Defined benefit plans

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (unfunded) for qualifying employees of its operations in India. The defined benefit plan is administered

by the Company. Under this plan, the employee is entitled to a lump-sum payment upon retirement from the services of the Compan

Y.

An employee

becomes eligible to receive payment upon completion of 5 years of service at the rate of 15 days of service for each completed year of service.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks subh as; interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

[ Interest risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.

| Longevity risk

—_—
1

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate ofi
the mortality of the plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life|
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

—
|

| Salary risk

il liability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of.
plan participants. As such an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s|

No other post-retirement benefits are provided to the employees.

in respect of the said plan, the most recent actuarial valuation of the defined benefit obligation were carried out by an external expert, who is a duly
registered actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using

the projected unit credit method.
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i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation: -~ in¥Llakhs
| o | _March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 |
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year _-___"_'2,802.6?_ i 2,178.36
Interest cost _ - - _ 203.19 161.06
poment sefvicocost . 62886 5937
Benefits paid o o (469.00) _ (275.43)
Actuarial losses on obligations - due to change in financial assumptions | ~ (139.29) (0.37)
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligations - due to experience ' 451.47 149.68
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year T _ 3,477.70 . 2,802.67
_ii) Expense recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss: . —___________In¥Lakhs
e e | Mrarch 31, 2023 |_March 31,2022 |
 Current service cost T ; 62866 58037
et ilerestcost __—— | 20319 igrop
(Expeness fecognized | — 83185 75043
_ﬂiﬂ)_§5gggﬁs§§_r_egggnized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in ¥ Lakhs

[ March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2027 |
31218 14931

Actuarial (gain) /Toss

N.et..(g_a_i_q)__f'_@ééré@i‘i‘i@i@_lm_m_% 3128 4930
iv) Actuarial assumptions: in ¥ Lakhs
[ e T i March 31, 2023 |~ March 31, 2022 |
"Rate of discounting (p.a) 7.52% ,' 687% |
| Rate of salary increase (p.a. ) “ 7.00% | 700%
| Attrition rate (p.a.) For service 2 years| For service 2 years|
and below 20.00% | and below 20.00% |
, p.a. p.a. |
' For service 3 yearsf For service 3 years;
to 4 years 10.00% | to 4 years 10.00%
| p.a. JJ p.a. ;
| For service 5 years| For service 5 years|
j' and above 2.00% | and above 2.00% i
_;_‘_'___ q - p.a. |__ ”p.a.. -
' Mortality table Indian Assured J Indian Assured |
' Lives ‘. Lives
Mortality 2012-14 | Mortality 2012-14 _-
______ r——iee (Urban) L (Urban) |

The discount rates refiect the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the Balance Sheet
date for the estimated term of the obligations.

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account, inflation, seniority,

-_— e __in ¥ Lakhs
| March 31, 2023 ____March 31,2022
I| | Increase in Decreasein | “Increasein | Decrease in |
- f assumption | assumption assumption | assumption
\Discount rate (1% movement) | (457.58)] 55472 (387.30)) 47341 i‘
{Future salary appreciation (1% | ’
movement) TR | R 552.01_[_____5___(463.53}________ 431.81 | 370.14),
(Attrition rate (1% movement) | 466 | (8.30)| |

The above information is as f:er the report of the actuary.




DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

30. Financial instruments

a. Capital Risk Management

The objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital,

The management sets the amounts of capital required in proportion to risk. The Company manages its capital
structure and adjusts it in light of changes in economic conditions and risk characteristics of the underlying
assets,

The capital structure consists of borrowings (as detailed in note 15 and 17), and equity (comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained earnings as detailed in statement of changes in shareholders’ equity). The debt
equity ratio for current year is (3.38) (March 31, 2022: (1.89)).

Consequent to the common control business combination given effect to in the previous year, which resulted in
creation of debit balance in capital reserve, the Company has a negative net worth as at March 31, 2023. The
consideration payable to the shareholders of the combining entities, has primarily resulted in a negative net
working capital as on the balance sheet date. The Company is mainly a cost plus entity, rendering services to its

revenue from operations have continued to grow in recent years,
The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

b. Financial risk management objectives
A wide range of risks may affect the Company’s business and financial results. Amongst other risks that could
have significant influence

and long-term budgets by monitoring the
on its operational and financial performance,

c. Market risk
The Company is primarily exposed to the following market risks.
i. Foreign currency risk management

T_h_,e__C:gmgg_rJy'_s_ foreign ¢ currency exposure as at year end is as follows: p——
; . March 31, 2023 , March 31, 2022 ?
| c';‘::fc'; Foreign ["in¥ Lakhs | Foreign | in? Lakis _'
d . ti | currency currency |

e enomina '°"1 (in Lakhs) i (inLakhs) | |
Financial Assets USD | 10496 851868 _60.40] 458423
e 1 _CAD | i = 013 3 7.98
- - | cBP r 36.14| 367051 303.99| 30,346.45
L —|__RED T G0d| 032 I
Total — ] [ 1 12,289.51 ______.H__i‘:_%éil_?&ﬁ_f
(Financial Liabilties |~ G§p | S1.55] 423825 5323 3,963.98
'___,___1________“_ CAD [ 0.65 39.19 061 ""37.06
L - GBP | 331.06 33,622.18 221.22[___@2@3.84;
L -~ | seb T 0.28 17.07 . 4
| EUR | 2.84 253.24] 268 22538
— | TTNPR | 6.12 @Q}; :
Total N L 38168.75( I 35310.36)
Net Exposure _ = 1 - _":1_*::_@%?3@_!:',_..___ _ | "8,628.40]

Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: decrease/ increase by ¥423.04 Lakhs respective
This sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items.
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il. Interest rate risk management

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because it borrows funds in the form of invoice discounting
facility at floating interest rates determined on the date of disbursement and funds from related parties at
floating rates and term loans with capping on interest rates. The management is responsible for the
monitoring of the Company's interest rate position. Various variables are considered by the management in
structuring the Company's borrowings to achieve a reasonable, competitive cost of funding.

o ) . in ¥ Lakhs
| ' = | T =
| March 31, 2023 Less than |More than 1 i Total

' 1 year ___year |

!_Bg’_ro_wjgg_g___ e — | 9815.15| 30,489.40 | 40,304.55 |
| Lease liabilities | 5631.08| 882447 14,455.55
\ITradepayables 2,861.83 ol 2,861.83 |
Other financial liabilifies - 97070095 - | 977095]
Total ) _28,079.01 | 39,313.87 | 67,392.88 |
Fo———— . in¥lakhs
| March 31, 2022 Less than | More than 1 Total ::'
e N _ _1year year | " |
_'__EigMgL — 16,371.74 | 11,992.86 28,364.60 |
| Lease liabilities 5,587.60 | 10,899.74 16,487.34 |
| Trade payables 2,424.34 - 2,424.34 |
]_O__tﬁ_e_rﬁnancial‘ liabilities 1 54519.71 - T 54,519.71 |
Total 78,903.39 | 22,892.60 | 101,795.99

1%
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e. Fair value measurements

Carrying value

in ¥ Lakhs

Fair value

|

bty
i

March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | Fair value ;
o o 2023 2022 2023 2022 | hierarchy |
| Financial Assets | I
. Financial assets measured at fair value | L]
[ Other financial assets ' 400.00 800.00 400.00 800.00 | Level3 |
. i |
| Financial assets measured af amortised cost , ] I I
Trade receivables o o 15,182.19 | 39,881.16 -1
| Cash and cash equivalents 207720 470.12 R <~
| Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents | 11.34 560.52 - - | -
| Investments ) 1,501.00 | 1,501.00 . - 1
 Other financial assets 6,675.29 | 7,594.71 - -1
[_‘fl_'"gt*a__'i‘ financial assets 25,847.02 | 50,807.51 400.00 800.00 | |
emtiiancialassets = > =22 |
fwffn"aﬂrflci'a_lti“a_l—)iiit'ies:'_*_ _-‘%_.':_:____{, 1
| Einancial liabilities measured at amortised cost |« . :'
_Borrowings ) N 40,304.55 | 28,364.60 - o
| Lease liabilites 14,455.55 | 16,487.34 - - 1 ]
| Trade payables 2,861.83 | 242434 - - |
| Other financial liabilities 9,070.95 | 5451971 | ' Y
 Total financial liabilities ) 67,392.88 | 101,795.99 —te = I |

Financial Assets

L S

'Revenue participation in movies
|

J
|
|

[Movement in level 3 instruments during the year

| As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2022

{ Less: Allowances

Basis of valuation technique for level 3 financiai instruments _in% Lakhs
;e - xSrvelee } —
T ;r .| Relationshi |
Valuation | of i
March 31, | March 31, | Fair value techniques llunot':servabi
2023 2022 hierarchy | and key | le inputs to |
inputs | P
= * —1 — | fairvalue |
Undiscounte !:s'g;eartg:je
d cash flow | .
based |theatrical
asedon X office |
400.00 800.00 |Level 3 estimated l erformance
theatrical "pthe higher :
box office l'i,s the fair
performanci'\,alue
" in % Lakhs|
800.00
800.00
(400.00)
400.00

L As at March 31, 2023




DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

31. Related party disclosures

a. List of related parties where control exists, irrespective of transactions
Ultimate Holding Com an

Prime Focus Limited

Intermediate holdin companies
PF World Limited .
Prime Focus Luxembourg S.a.r.|
Prime Focus 3D Co-operatief U.A.

Immediate Holdin compan
Prime Focus World N.V.

Subsidiary companies
Prime Focus Academy of Media ang Entertainment Studies Private Limited

List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
and balance outstanding

Ultimate Holding Com an

Prime Focus Limited

Intermediate holding companies
PF World Limited

Subsidiary companies
Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited

Fellow subsidiaries

Prime Focus International Services UK Limited
Prime Focus Technologies Limited

Double Negative Limited

Double Negative Canada Productions Limited
Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited
DNEG North America Inc

DNEG Australia PTY Limited

Jam8 Prime Focus LLP

Lowry Digital Imaging Service Inc

Key Management Personnel
Mr. Merzin Tavaria (M/s Luminosity)
Ms. Delna Dhamodiwala (w.e.f. June 1, 2022)

b
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b. List of transactions with related parties during the year in T Lakhs
! March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
\Borrowings taken
Double Negative Limited 9,915.00 -
Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited 370.21 10.00
Borrowings repaid
Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited 103.28 129.25
Security deposits received back
Prime Focus Limited - 4,443.58
Rent expense
Prime Focus Limited 1,856.22 1,377.23
Blooming Buds Coaching Private Limited 427.16 455.44
Finance costs
Prime Focus Limited 112.15 -
Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited 55.35 68.01
Double Negative Limited 957.99 884.18
Stock Option Expense
Prime Focus World NV - (0.32)
Purchase of India Production Services Business (including working capital adjustment)
Prime Focus Limited - 37,948.59
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by
Prime Focus Technologies Limited - 27.67
Prime Focus Limited 121,42 453.54
Prime Focus International Services UK Limited - 3.67
Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited 2.18 -
DNEG North America Inc 0.19 -
Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited - 0.09
Reimbursement of expenses incurred for
Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited 0.36 0.51
Prime Focus Limited - 5.56
Double Negafive Limited 80.21 1,236.22
Double Negative Canada Productions Limited 3.36 -
Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited - 1.17
Prime Focus Technologies Limited - 3.65
Prime Focus World NV - 19.91
Jama Prime Focus LLP - 0.20
Technician Fees
Mr. Merzin Tavaria (M/s Luminosity) 78.00 78.00
Management Fees income
Double Negative Limited 1,555.67 1,101.14
Revenue
Prime Focus Limited 156.96 -
Prime Focus International Services UK Limited 169.17 1.794.90
Double Negative Limited 54,705.62 35,222.98
Double Negative Canada Productions Limited 6,328.26 3,921.86
Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited 23,014.49 19,610.43
Technical service cost
|Prime Focus Technologies Limited 0.50 -
Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited 367.30 -
Jam8 Prime Focus LLP 6.50 -
‘Sale of assets
Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited - 6.56
Double Negative Canada Productions Limited 116.00 -
DNEG Australia PTY Limited 1.15 -
\Double Negative Limited 188.01 = |
Purchase of assets
Prime Focus International Services UK Limited 249.06 -
Management Fees Expense
Prime Focus Limited o 899.26 -
Remuneration (Refer note d, below)
'Ms. Delna Dhamodiwala 117.83 -

\
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¢. Balance outstanding at the year end . in¥Lakhs

[ - | March 31, 2023 |_March 31, 2022 |

Loans received (including interest) | [ - {

Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited 1,301.92 | — 98519 !
me y of Media ar ————"TvaleLimited

}@Hp_@ Negative Limite _ 30,486.41 | ___12;56_"5_’-.?"_9‘_}

ﬁeg_t_:_rig;m&gposits receivable |

o — —
Prime Focus Limted ___——————— s - ’ 78561 7sp |
Blooming Buds Coaching Private Limited 530.00 | 530.00 j
[ T T |

Trade payabies and other current liabilities

|Prime Focus Limited

rme Focus Limited ~ — 1185T] 45505 ]
[Prime Focus Technologies Limited I 050 12.48 |
'Double Negat'@ Montreal Productions Limited ] 36.33 | 34.20 |

Double Negative Canada Productions Limited Y} E— &

DNEG North America nc 019 ]
{Prime Focus World N.V. _ | 951.26 | 87929 |
Prime Focus / Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited | 9882 0.09 |

Prime Focus nternational Services UK Limited T 345/ _221.09 |
Mr. Merzin Tavaria (M/s Luminosity) 7.02 | 7.02 |

/Advances to related parties
"Prime Focus Technologies Limited
Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited

pime Foous Limited S ) ——
\Lowry Digital Imaging Service inc — 30685 283.64 |
Jam8 Prime Focus LLP ——— [ 021]
.JE![EIQ_EQMQ‘?_N;L____._.___. — 2027 |
rf_ Double Negative Limited ‘} 24.93 56.96 |
e Negative Limited — L_____

f=— PR o ———
fDeferred consideration payable

Prime Focus Limited

e — : — ]
Trade receivables and Other receivables | [ ]
|Prime Focus International Services UK Limited | 970.41 |
+-IIMe ~ocus International 97041 |

{Prime Focus Limited 14.55 | — ]
Double Negative Limited 1052818 | 3984863
Double Negative Canada Productions Limiteg 139471 2,028.06 |
Double Negative Montreal Productions Limiteq - f 328157
|Prime Focus Technologies Limited 6.96 | B
e S e = ]
Unbilled revenue/ (Deferred revenue) T ]
Double Negative Montrea] Productions Limited (10,960.91)| __(10,113.48)|
Double Negative Limited

DNEG Norh Ameie —(7.590.34) (280.89),
DNEG North America Inc . | 3349 (484
|Prime Focus International Services UK Limited 85.46)| - |

s Inte 'S UK Lir —_(8546) S——

[Double Negative Canada Productions Limiteq 20.17 |
S e}
,' Corporate guarantees given by and outstanding at the year end el
Prime Focus Limited _ e MIH_EL‘EQE’&Q;
Prime Focus World N.y. | 1,800.00 1,800.00 |

-—~___________________,_ﬁ____-———-~__~____________ e — e 1,800.00

Company (Refer Note 17).
C. All contracts/ arrangement with the relateq parties are at arms length.

d. As the liabilities for defined benefit Plans are provided on the basis of report of actuary for the Company as a whole, the
amounts pertaining to Key Management Personnel are not included.
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32. Capital commitments i —— ___in¥ Lakhs

[ e moa——————____| March 31,2023 | Warch 31,2022 |
\Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) f I |
andnotprovidedfor. — S ——— 157382 | 6060
33. Contingent liabilities

e in% Lakhs
= ftors under dispgle———————— | March 37,2023 Eﬂi@.‘)ﬁh??@%
Income Tax Matters under dispute
Relates to demands raised by the income tax authorities for AY 2017-18 under Transfer 1,818.19 1,818.19

pricing provisions Margin Adjustments on transfer pricing transaction, The matter is pending
before Income tax appellate _tr_ibuna_l

Note: '
In respect of above matters, the Company is hopeful of Succeeding in appeals and as such does not expect any significant liability to
materialize. Future cash flows in respect of above are determinable only on receipt of judgements/ decisions pending with the authority.

34. L eases
Maturity profile of lease liabilities e ___in% Lakhs
" ~_.March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Carrying | Undiscounted Carrying Amount Undiscounted

: Amount | Cashflow = . Cashflow
within one year | | 5631.08 | 637270 5,587.60 6,330.73
later than one year and not later than five years } | 8,824.47 _11,403.15 10,899.74 11,092.00
later than five years - = = | - -
Total : : el 1445555 | 17,775.85 16,487.34 17,422.74

35. Segment reporting

The segment information has been prepared in line with the review of operating resuits by chief operating decision maker (CODM). The
production i

Company is presently operating as integrated post- services and other related activities in connection therewith. The CODM
decides on allocation of the resources to the business taking a holistic view of th
Tepresenting a single operating segment.

The Company operates in three principal geographical areas - India (Country of Domicile), United Kingdom and Canada. The

Company's revenye from continuing operations from customers by location of customers and information about its non-current assets
by location of assets are detailed below: ’

e entire setup and hence it iIs considered as

—_— e _ — ——_____in% Lakhs
| Revenue from operations | _Segment Non-current assets |
L e ___March 31, March 31-.JMEJ&%LLM@EHEL%QE?_ '
Lndia | 595101 vk 4194294 35376565 |
United Kingdom ———— | ss430us] 3101788 - et
‘Canada e ___,__h_*___ﬁ____[_._*_zaéizéz_ﬁi __23532.29 | o '

| Total

10172432 | 73 921.1ET::§_«:1,9_E§¥{_*;T____'__ 35,376.66 |
--—-._\_._'_'-‘h"———-____l__________

Two customers contributed 10% or more of the Company's total revenue for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022
(refer note 31).

f 36. Corporate social | responsibility

— ——______inTlakhs

Gosimeer—r—— —— J___hlamrsz“_?ﬂ_._-?_ﬂ_z_& | _March 31, 2022 |
;.QLOES.-.,mggni,@,ufﬁim_bﬂagmmmggm@avﬂﬁmmz@ar ___L__J,_ﬁ__*_m__?_ﬂ_-?ﬁ_,j._____ _ 4251 |
rﬂmg@zhspﬂ_t_d_qﬂm_t_ngygm_____ —— ! — ]
1@3@%@@@3&@@@%_ e -
}@L@a.gymg_hmmﬂmgze —_—_— ] 90.00 | .38.22 |
| N
:.Ilﬂmmgfmmﬂlamﬂn@i&m@.&fﬁ%ﬂ@@m@iﬁa@@vﬁa&!_ﬁh_mﬁ S
;‘.Q.qmmﬁgmmmaf__mh________%h_ﬁihm____- 429
;Ib_e_zgzelgipgg_wg@vg\a_@féhgzﬁ_ahm_@mim_ﬁ | =

-22. However, the unspent amount
. The unspent amount for year Fy
Same was repaid on 1st October,

was fransferred to Government recognised funds, in term of notification dated 22nd January, 2021
2021-22 was paid on 27th September, 2022, however dye to technical issues it was returned and

2022, \"
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37. Pursuant to shareholders' approval, a business transfer agreement (the "BTA") was executed during the FY 2021-22 between
the Company and Prime Focus Limited (PFL), Ultimate Holding Compan « for purchase of PFL’s India production services
business ("IPS") effective March 31,2022 fora consideration of ¥36,500.00 lakhs, adjusted for working capital adjustments and
indebtedness.

As per Ind AS 103 (Appendix C), "Business Combinations of entities under common control", the financiaj information in the
financial statements in respect of prior periods have been restated as jf the business combination had occurred from the beginning
of the previous yeari.e. April 1, 2020, The consideration net of working capital adjustment worked out to 740,726.18 lakhs

owing figures of revenye and directly attributable expenses related to IPS business for the period from

As per Appendix C, the foll
April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022 had been included in the Statement of Profit ang Loss for the FY 2021-22;

Statement of Profit and Loss in¥ Lakhs
For the
period April
01,2021 to
March, 31,
. 2022*
Revenue from operations 10,552.56
Other income 524.99
Total Income 11,077.55
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 1,313.28
Finance costs 392.65
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense 4,070.31
Other expense 3,088.10
Total expenses 8,864.34
Profit before tax 2,213.21
*figures extracted based on information available with the Company and relied upon by the auditors.
The difference between the carrying amount of net assets acquired as at April 01, 2020 aggregating to 13,899 46 Jakhs and the

consideration payable on that deemed acquisition date, had been transferred to Capital Reserve (debit of 26,908 98 lakhs).

Capital reserve pertains to amount emanating on application of Ind AS 103 (Appendix C). "Business Combinations of entities
under common control" which is as follows: () merger of entities w.e.f 1st April, 2019 of # 7,816.82 lakhs, (ii) acquisition of India
VFX business in year 2020-21 of  27.653.32 lakhs and (i) acquisition of India Production Services business in year 2021-22 of
¥ 26,908.98 lakhs.

38. Additional Regulatory Information:

i. Key financial ratios as at

Ratios March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 Variation Reason for
: - TSR o __Vvariation
Current ratio . .. 0588 0.56 _ 3%
\Debt-equity Ratio i _ — _ (3.38)] (1.89) 79% | Refer Note 1
:Debtsqrvice Coverage ratio o . ) | — ] 207 | ] 212 _-2%:R_efer.Npl_ez
._Tr_a;_:_!e_recefvab_la turnover ratio - 369 | 295 | _2_'5%;8_ef_erl\!ot_e_3
Trade payables turnover ratio ; e BE5 3.93 69% | Refer Note 4
Net capital turnover ratio S ] (4.89) ) (1.80) 171% Refer Note 5
Return on equity ratio i ; _79%! 83%) 5%
Net profit ratio : I e | . _8%]| } 11%| -31% |Refer Note 6
Return on capital employed _ L 53%] _-1381% -104% | Refer Note 1
‘Retumn on investment B —l  NA NA| NA[Refer Note 7

Reasons for variation:
1. Variation on account of increase in borrowing from related Parties during the year.

2. Variation on account of increase in Earning before interest, depreciation and tax.

7. Fixed deposits palced are towards bank guarantees issued. Hence interest on the fi
return on investment. Accordingly return on investment is not applicable.

\
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Formula for computation of aforesaid ratios
1) Current ratio: Current asset / Current liability
2) Debt equity ratio: Total debt/ Total equity

7) Return on equity: Profit after Tax/ Average equity
8) Net profit ratio: Profit after tax/ Revenue from operations
9) Return on capital employed: Net profit before interest and tax / Capital Employed (Shareholders Fund + long term borrowings)

ii. Other information:-

a. The Company does not have any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for
holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

Company’s Act, 1956.

in ¥ Lakhs
Name of the Company Nature of transactions with struck-off Balance as at March Balance as at March
company 31,2023 31, 2022

Razorblade Piclures Private Limited Trade Receivables 11.59 12.28
Microsidd India Private Limited Trade Payables - -

Coverage Media Entertainment Private Limited Deposits from customers 13.30 13.30
Blue Crush Pictures Private Limited Trade Receivables 0.20 0.20
Paramhans Creation Private Limited Deposits from customners . 14.46 14.46
Paramhans Creation Private Limited Trade Receivables 0.61 0.61
RM Picture Company Private Limited Trade Receivables 14.22 14,22
SSK Films Private Limited Trade Receivables 0.06 0.06
Thrust Communications Private Limited Trade Receivables 042 042
Adbhaot Creatives Private Limited Trade Receivables - -

Note: The above mentioned Companies are not related parties to the Company.

d. The Company has complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed under section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017.

e. There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the yearin tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or
survey), that has not been recorded in the books of account.

f. The Company has not traded orinvested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.

g. Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium :
(i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:
- Directly or indirectly lend ar invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner Wwhatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
- Provide any Quarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,
(ii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
- Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
- Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

h. The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory
period.

daily basis.

The books of account along with other relevant records and papers of the Company are maintained in electronic mode. These are readily accessible in
India at all imes and currently a backup is maintained on a cloud-based server. The Company is in the pracess of complying with the requirement of
maintaining sefver(s) physically located in India for back-up of books of account and other relevant books and papers, on a daily basis, pursuant to the
amendment.

39. During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company vide its meeting dated January 4, 2023 has passed resolution for approval of the scheme of
amalgamation of the Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited ("PFAMES"), subsidiary of the Company. The effective
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40. Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on September 27, 2023.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-40

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Merzin Tavaria Vikas Rathee

Whole-time Director Executive Director and

DIN 07015623 Chief Financial Officer
DIN 07015635

/./ /
Naresh Malhotra Nihar Shah

Director Company Secretary
DIN 00004597

Place: Mumbal
Date: September 27, 2023




